

locally listening & leading -



# July 28, 2014 Board and Stakeholder Meeting Minutes Cabrillo Marina Community Building, 6:30pm.

1. Call to Order and Roll Call: Meeting called to order at 6:30pm by Chairman Dave Behar. See list below for board member attendance (14 Board members). Approximately 40 stakeholders also in attendance.

Board Members	Roll Call Vote
Dave Behar	Present
Gary Bettis	Present
Cari Lynn Burich	Present
June Burlingame-Smith	Excused
Slobodan Dimitrov	Excused
James Dimon	Present
Louis Dominguez	Present
Charles Hawley	Present
Denise Marovich-Sampson	Present
Matt Matich	Present
Chris Nagle	Excused
Ana Rosa Ortiz	Present
Ted Shirley	Present
Sonya Tsjimura	Present
John Vidovich	Present
Peter Warren	Present
Rachel Waugh	Present

- 2. **Reading and approval of minutes:** Motion by James Dimon to approve the June 14, 2014 Board and Stakeholder Meeting minutes as presented in the agenda packet. Motion seconded by Ted Shirley and passed with 12 yes (Bettis, Vidovich, Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Waugh, Dominguez, Hawley, Ortiz), 0 no, 2 abstentions (Behar, Warren).
- 3. **Special Recognition:** Tony Saavedra was honored for his contributions to film education through the Docs Rock Program at San Pedro High School. Saavedra was presented with a certificate of appreciation from the CSPNC Board.
- 4. Public Comment on non-agenda items:
  - a. James Baeza, stakeholder, commented on his disappointment with how the CSPNC's June Board and Stakeholder meeting was conducted and would like to see the board move in a more positive direction.
  - b. Donald Galaz spoke in opposition of the Pacific Avenue Road Diet.
  - c. John (last name not provided) spoke about the importance of neighborhood council board members following procedure.

- d. Peggy Lundquist spoke about Alma Street. She would like to see printed warnings signs painted onto the road warning drivers that there is a Stop Sign Ahead where Alma ends at 37<sup>th</sup> Street
- e. Pamela Gaume announced an upcoming Emergency Preparedness event at Leland Street Elementary School.
- f. There was also a stakeholder inquiring about proposed plans for Gaffey Street.
- 5. **LAPD -** Senior Lead Officer Eve Wight reported on the following:
  - a. Crime stats for June show improvement. A hand out was available for review.
  - b. There have been some residential burglaries in the area, most of these had unlocked doors or windows.
  - c. Alma Park Neighborhood Watch meeting has resulted in a Park Advisory Board being formed to deal with issues at the park.
  - d. South Shores has been dealing with an individual knocking on doors asking for gas money etc. He is on the LAPD's radar.
  - e. Chuck Hawley gave an update on traffic issues reported by a stakeholder.

### Written Reports from Government Agency Representatives:

- 6. **CD15** Ryan Ferguson presented a written report and gave a brief summary of the following:
  - a. Hamilton Avenue Street Widening: The local Coastal Development permit was approved. No appeals were filed. The paperwork has been sent to the State of California for concurrence. They have 60-90 days for review, hearing and approval.
  - b. White Point Landslide: Dewatering and stabilization is complete. 18 slope anchors have been installed and stress tested for the maximum load. The city of LA's Geotechnical Group anticipates it will take approximately 3 months before the new contractor can begin street work. Gates will remain locked during this time.
  - c. John Vidovich asked for a future update on traffic calming measures.
  - d. Richard Havenick voiced concern on the amount of water being pumped out of the landslide area. He feels the residents in the area are not getting enough updated information and wants to encourage more open communication.
  - e. Louis Dominguez would like to see more focus on mass transit than on bike lanes.
  - f. Chuck Hawley commented on the upcoming Navy Days event. He would like to ensure that the city of Long Beach does not bash San Pedro again like they did last time. Louis Dominguez clarified that it was not the city of Long Beach but NCIS and they now know that it is safer here than they had previously thought.
- 7. Question Time regarding written Officer and Committee Chair reports: None
- 8. **Board approval of all purchasing card transactions and monthly bank statements:** The June 2014 Bank Statement was submitted for approval by Ted Shirley, Treasurer. Motion to approve by James Dimon, seconded by Gary Bettis. Motion passed with 11 yes votes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Warren, Ortiz), 0 no, 2 abstentions (Behar, Waugh). Note: Dominguez not in room at time of vote.
- 9. Presentation: Carlos Rios, project manager at DOT spoke about the Pacific Avenue Road Diet Project. The project will change the configuration of Pacific Avenue to increase safety by reducing speed and creating a center channelization for turning left. The two lanes in each direction will be reduced to one lane to accommodate the center turn late and allow for bike lanes. (From 22<sup>nd</sup> Street north to Front Street.) After the short presentation stakeholders and board members voiced their concerns which included:

- a. Cars crossing bike lanes is dangerous.
- b. The CSPNC Board voted against this when the CRA presented it at a previous meeting. Chuck Hawley questioned why the wishes of the neighborhood council have been ignored.
- c. The CSPNC Transportation Committee will address this issue further.
- d. Allyson Vought spoke on behalf of cyclists and gave statistics on the positive impact of bicycle lanes.
- 10. **Presentation:** The Department of Recreation and Parks was not in attendance to report on the Pt. Fermin seepage. This presentation will be rescheduled for next month.
- 11. **Presentation by Metro:** Robin Quintanilla spoke about TAP and Transit services for the Coastal Community.
  - a. Local DASH is only 50 cents to ride and only 25 cents for seniors over 65.
  - b. Their goal is to get vehicles off the road.
  - c. The first DASH bus is available at 6:40am daily.
  - d. There is a Commuter Express service at a cost of \$1.50 which goes to downtown Long Beach. It runs every day of the year, from 5am-10pm.
  - e. The "TAP" card was explained. The closest Blue Line station is Long Beach. There is no current location in San Pedro to get a TAP card.

### 12. Chairman/President's Report:

- Dave Behar welcomed the new board members and stressed the importance of keeping a
  positive dialogue alive.
- b. Behar reported that the NCPAC (Neighborhood Council Port Affairs Committee) is moving forward. The next NCPAC meeting is August 13, at the Fireboat Station.
- c. The upcoming Congress of Neighborhood Councils was announced.
- d. Accomplishments for the 2013-14 year were acknowledged.

### 13. CSPNC Governing Board Officer Elections:

- a. The rules of the election were presented.
- b. **Office of President:** Matt Matich nominated James Dimon for the office of President, seconded by Denise Marovich-Sampson. The appointment of James Dimon as CSPNC President was approved with 14 yes votes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Warren, Ortiz, Behar, Waugh and Dominguez); 0 no votes; 0 abstentions.
- c. **Office of Vice President:** Gary Bettis was nominated by John Vidovich, seconded by Matt Matich. The appointment of Gary Bettis as CSPNC Vice President was approved with 14 yes votes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Warren, Ortiz, Behar, Waugh and Dominguez); 0 no votes; 0 abstentions.
- d. **Office of Treasurer**: James Dimon nominated Ted Shirley, seconded by Matt Matich. The appointment of Ted Shirley to the office of CSPNC Treasurer was approved with 13 yes votes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Ortiz, Behar, Waugh and Dominguez); 0 no, 1 abstention (Peter Warren).
- e. **Office of Secretary:** Ana Ortiz was nominated by James Dimon, seconded by Peter Warren. The appointment of Ana Ortiz as CSPNC Secretary was approved with 14 yes votes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Warren, Ortiz, Behar, Waugh and Dominguez); 0 no votes; 0 abstentions.
- 14. **Motion Re: Appointment of Holder of CSPNC Bank Card:** Motion by James Dimon to appoint the CSPNC Treasurer, Ted Shirley, as holder of the bank card for the CSPNC checking account. Motion seconded by Dave Behar and approved with 13 yes votes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-

Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Ortiz, Behar, Waugh and Dominguez); 0 no, 1 abstention (Peter Warren).

- 15. **Motion Re: Appointment of Second Signatory.** Motion by John Vidovich to appoint Ana Ortiz as second signatory on the CSPNC bank account. Motion seconded by Denise Marovich-Sampson and approved with 14 yes votes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Ortiz, Behar, Warren, Waugh and Dominguez); 0 no, 0 abstentions.
- 16. **Motion Re: Appointment of Budget Advocates:** Ted Shirley nominated Louis Dominguez as one of the two Budget Advocates to represent the CSPNC, seconded by Denise Marovich-Sampson. Ted Shirley nominated Ana Ortiz as the second Buget Advocate to represent the CSPNC. The Board approved the appointment of Louis Domingez and Ana Ortiz as Budget Advocates with 13 yes votes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Ortiz, Behar, Waugh and Dominguez); 0 no, 1 abstention (Peter Warren).
- 17. **Motion Re: Appointment of HANC Representatives:** Dave Behar was nominated as the HANC Representative and Sonya Tsujimura was nominated as the alternate. The Board approved the appointment of Dave Behar as HANC Representative and Sonya Tsjuimura as HANC Alternate with 13 yes votes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Ortiz, Behar, Waugh and Dominguez); 0 no, 1 abstention (Peter Warren).
- 18. **CONSENT CALENDAR**: (There were requests to remove items "e" and "f" from the consent calendar for discussion). Motion by John Vidovich, seconded by Peter Warren, to approve items "a" through "d" by consent. Motion approved with 14 yes votes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Ortiz, Behar, Warren, Waugh and Dominguez); 0 no, 0 abstentions. Items "a" through "d" as approved follow:
  - a. **RESOLUTION** / CSPNC will convene a public hearing chaired by the Public Safety Committee regarding increased graffiti in the Coastal San Pedro area, to be held within 60 days.
  - b. **MOTION** / CSPNC establishes the Coastal Risk and Beautification subcommittee of the Planning Committee.
  - c. MOTION / CSPNC establishes the Governing Board retreat date of August 9, 2014
  - d. **RESOLUTION TO HONOR RETIRING BOARD MEMBERS**

**Whereas**, Bob Gelfand and Lydia Gutierrez have faithfully served the Coastal San Pedro Neighborhood Council (CSPNC), volunteering for participation in Board sponsored events, chairing various committees, and acting as officers when called upon, and

**Whereas**, Dan Malstrom has strongly articulated neighborhood concerns and worked to solve these problems during his two year tenure on the CSPNC Board,

**Resolved**: the Coastal San Pedro Neighborhood Council thanks Bob Gelfand, Lydia Gutierrez and Dan Malstrom for their service to community based governance through the Neighborhood Council process, and

**Further Resolved**: that Bob Gelfand, Lydia Gutierrez and Dan Malstrom be presented with a certificate of appreciation and publicly recognized for their service at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Coastal San Pedro Neighborhood Council.

19. (Agenda Item 17e) Motion to approve Board Meeting and Agenda Meeting Calendar for August 2014-July 2015. Dean Pentcheff brought forth the following motion for approval:

**Motion:** The Coastal San Pedro Neighborhood Council shall have Governing Board meetings on the third Monday of each month, except when such a date falls on a Federal or California State holiday, in which case the Governing Board meeting shall be on the following Monday (see amendment below). Agenda Meetings shall be on the second Monday of each month, except when such a date falls on a Federal or California State holiday, in which case the Agenda Meeting shall be on the following day.

Month	Agenda Meeting	Board Meeting	Federal and California State Holidays (informational)
August 2014	11	18	
September 2014	8	15	1st is Labor Day
October 2014	14	20	13th is Columbus Day
November 2014	10	17	11th is Veteran's Day 27th is Thanksgiving Day 28th is Thanksgiving holiday [CA State]
December 2014	8	15	25th is Christmas Day
January 2015	20	26	1st is New Year's Day 19th is Birthday of Martin Luther King, Jr.
February 2015	17	23	16th is Washington's Birthday / Presidents' Day
March 2015	9	16	
April 2015	13	20	May 11, 18, june 8 and 15.
May 2015	11	18	25th is Memorial Day
June 2015	8	15	
July 2015	13	20	3rd is Independence Day holiday

Motion by Ana Ortiz, seconded by Chuck Hawley to add the following words after the word "Monday" in the third line: "unless the Board meeting schedule conflicts with the schedule of the standard meeting facility and an alternative location cannot be secured." The motion to amend passed with 12 yes votes (Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Ortiz, Warren, Waugh and Dominguez); 0 no votes and 1 abstention (Behar). Bettis not present at time of voting.

Motion by Chuck Hawley to include the April through July Dates (see above table) which were not visible on the tabled included in the agenda packet. The motion was seconded by Rachel Waugh and passed with 14 yes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Ortiz, Behar, Warren, Waugh and Dominguez); 0 no, 0 abstentions.

Motion by Peter Warren to approve Item E as amended, seconded by Denise Marovich-Sampson and passed with 14 yes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Ortiz, Behar, Warren, Waugh and Dominguez); 0 no, 0 abstentions.

### 20. (Agenda Item 17f) Resolution Regarding Meeting Agenda Posting Rules: The following resolution regarding posting rules was presented:

Whereas the Department of Neighborhood Empowerment (DONE) has approved DONE Policy Number 2014-01 regarding the posting of meeting agendas; and

Whereas DONE Policy Number 2014-01 is required to be inserted into the Bylaws of all Neighborhood Councils: and

Whereas it will take at least four months for the Coastal San Pedro Neighborhood Council to bring its bylaws into compliance; therefore

Be it resolved, The Coastal San Pedro Neighborhood Council will amend its existing Standing Rule on the Posting of Meeting Notices existing text to be deleted shown in strikethrough, additions shown in underlined boldface):

It shall be the duty of the secretary of the neighborhood council that notice of the meetings of the <u>Governing</u>
Board are provided at least 72 hours in advance,; to whit, paper copies of the agenda posted at the five locations, at least one of which is Brown Act compliant, designated by the Board and on the Neighborhood Council's website. If the Secretary is unable to fulfill this duty, the President may designate a board member to perform this duty are posted and emailed to the stakeholder list at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting seconded by Chuck.

**And be it further Resolved**, The Coastal San Pedro Neighborhood Council (CSPNC) shall adopt the following Standing Rule:

The Coastal San Pedro Neighborhood Council shall follow Policy Number 2014-01 of the Board of Neighborhood Commissioners regarding the posting of agendas. This Standing Rule shall automatically become void when that policy is incorporated into the Bylaws of the Coastal San Pedro Neighborhood Council.

Policy Number 2014-01 of the Board of Neighborhood Commissioners

- 1. Board and Committee meetings. Any additional physical postings shall be within the Neighborhood Council boundaries and shall be Brown Act time compliant.
- 2. Neighborhood Councils shall post agendas of all Board and Committee meetings on their web site or, on a page made available to them on the EmpowerLA web site. Such postings shall be Brown Act time compliant.
- 3. Neighborhood Councils shall submit a copy of all regular and special Board and Committee agendas to the Department of Neighborhood Empowerment (Department) to be posted through the Early Notification System (ENS). The agenda for regular meetings shall be submitted to the Department not less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and the agenda for special meetings shall be submitted to the Department not less than 24 hours in advance of the meeting. As soon as feasible, the Department will submit the agenda for posting to the ENS system. Accordingly, posting the notices of meetings to the ENS system will not be required to comply with the Brown Act's time limits for posting agendas.
- 4. Neighborhood Councils that maintain an email list of stakeholders may email either a copy of the agenda for all Board and Committee meetings or an announcement of the meeting with a link to the agenda. Distribution to the email list will not be required to comply with the Brown Act's time limits for posting agendas.
- 5. Neighborhood Councils shall inform the Department of (a) the physical location of their posting site, (b) the address of their web site, if any and (c) confirm with the Department whether they use a stakeholder database to distribute their agendas. Neighborhood Councils shall be required to submit this information on a form approved by the Department.
- 6. Neighborhood Councils that do not maintain a web site or, if available a page on the EmpowerLA web site shall continue to comply with the five (5) to seven (7) physical locations posting requirements imposed during their certification process; one (1) of the posting locations shall be Brown Act compliant; the remaining posting locations shall be within the Neighborhood Council boundaries and shall comply with Brown Act time limits for posting.
- 7. These posting requirements shall be appended to and become a part of the bylaws of all current and future Neighborhood Councils and any violation of this policy may become the subject of a grievance.
- 8. If a Neighborhood Council is notified by the Department prior to any Board or Committee meeting that a confirmed violation of this policy has been reported the Neighborhood Council shall repost in accordance with this Policy. If the scheduled meeting cannot be reposted in compliance with this Policy, the Neighborhood Council shall cancel the meeting and make reasonable efforts to inform its stakeholders. If it becomes necessary to cancel Board or Committee meetings Neighborhood Councils are encouraged to contact the City Attorney for further guidance.
- 9. If a Neighborhood Council is found to be in violation of this Policy three (3) times within the current fiscal year the Board and any non-Board member committee chairs shall be required to take additional training as may be determined by the Department. If after receiving additional training the Neighborhood Council is again found to be in violation of this policy during the current fiscal year then exhaustive efforts to remedy this matter, including loss of funding may be taken by the Department pursuant to Article VI section 4 and Article X section 3 of the Plan for a Citywide system of Neighborhood Councils

Amendment by Peter Warren shown above in bold/underline, seconded by Chuck Hawley and passed with 12 yes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Behar, Warren, Waugh and Dominguez); 0 no, 0 abstentions (Behar and Ortiz not seated at time of voting). Motion by Gary Bettis to approve the resolution as amended, seconded by Peter Warren and passed with 12 yes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Behar, Warren, Waugh and Dominguez); 0 no, 0 abstentions (Behar and Ortiz not seated at time of voting).

#### 21. Comments from DONE Representative:

- a. Tom Soong congratulated the new board and presented a gavel and signs to the new CSPNC President. He commented that due to the late hour the scheduled board training would not be feasible. Tom introduced individuals from DONE and the City Attorney's office who were present to assist with board training.
- b. Tom announced an upcoming opportunity for board members to receive both Ethics and Funding Training on August 9<sup>th</sup>. 8:30am-12:30pm at Narbonne High School in the Multipurpose room.
- c. Carmen Hawkins from the city attorney's office encouraged everyone to attend the August 9<sup>th</sup> training, especially because of new funding information.

## 22. **FUNDING ITEMS FOR APPROVAL** (Recommendations from Agenda Meeting introduced by Ted Shirley):

- a. Consideration and possible action on a request that the CSPNC board will fund a Neighborhood Purpose Grant not to exceed \$1,500 for the San Pedro Arts Association and its San Pedro All Grades Student Art Competition in order to promote arts education and cultural activity in the community and receive promotional/outreach benefits for the neighborhood council. Motion to approve passed with 12 yes, 0 no, 2 abstentions (Bettis/yes, Vidovich/yes, Sampson/yes, Dimon/yes, Shirley/yes, Behar/yes, Burich/yes, Tsujimura/abstain, Matich/yes, Waugh/abstain, Dominguez/yes, Hawley/yes, Warren/yes, Ortiz/yes.)
- b. Consideration and possible action on a request that the CSPNC board will fund a Neighborhood Purpose Grant not to exceed \$2,000 for the Cabrillo Beach Boosters to support its promotion of recreational activities in the community and receive promotional/outreach benefits for the neighborhood council. Motion to table by Bettis, seconded by Warren. Motion to table passed with 8 yes, 4 no, 2 abstentions (Roll call vote: Bettis/yes, Vidovich/no, Sampson/yes, Dimon/no, Shirley/no, Behar/no, Burich/yes, Tsujimura/abstain, Matich/yes, Waugh/abstain, Dominguez/yes, Hawley/yes, Warren/yes, Ortiz/yes).
- c. Consideration and possible action on a request that the CSPNC board will fund a Neighborhood Purpose Grant not to exceed \$3,000 for Music by the Sea and its summer concert series in order to promote cultural and recreational events attended by the community and receive promotional/outreach benefits for the neighborhood council. Motion to approve by Ted Shirley, seconded by Denise Marovich-Sampson and passed with 12 yes, 0 no, 2 abstentions. (Roll call vote: Bettis/yes, Vidovich/yes, Sampson/yes, Dimon/yes, Shirley/yes, Behar/yes, Burich/yes, Tsujimura/abstain, Matich/yes, Waugh/abstain, Dominguez/yes, Hawley/yes, Warren/yes, Ortiz/yes.)
- d. Consideration and possible action on a request from the Public Safety Committee that the CSPNC board will fund a Neighborhood Purpose Grant not to exceed \$5,000 for the purchase of neighborhood watch signs. James Dimon relinquished the chair to Gary Bettis to be involved in discussion on this item. Motion to approve funding of this NPG not to exceed \$5,000 by James Dimon, seconded by Denise Marovich-Sampson. Discussion: James Dimon talked above the thriving neighborhood watch groups and the need for signs in the neighborhood to identify those groups. The signs would be attached to light poles. They cost \$17.95 each. After further discussion there was a motion to table this item by John Vidovich, seconded by Ana Ortiz. Motion to table passed with 8 yes votes, 3 no votes, 3 abstentions. (Roll call vote: Bettis/yes, Vidovich/yes, Sampson/yes, Dimon/no, Shirley/no, Behar/abstain, Burich/yes, Tsujimura/abstain, Matich/yes, Waugh/abstain, Dominguez/yes, Hawley/yes, Warren/no, Ortiz/yes.)
- e. Consideration and possible action on a request for a monthly expenditure of \$12.99 for voicemail services for the Coastal San Pedro Neighborhood Council. Motion to approve expenditure by Louis Dominguez, seconded by Gary Bettis. Motion to approve passed with 10 yes, 1 no, 3 abstentions. (Roll call: Bettis/yes, Vidovich/yes, Sampson/yes, Dimon/no,

Shirley/yes, Behar/abstain, Burich/yes, Tsujimura/abstain, Matich/yes, Waugh/abstain, Dominguez/yes, Hawley/yes, Warren/yes, Ortiz/yes.)

### 23. Appointments to Committees and other Committee action:

- a. **Budget and Finance**: Ted Shirley volunteered to be Chair of the Budget and Finance Committee. Approved with 13 yes votes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Ortiz, Behar, Waugh and Dominguez); 0 no, 1 abstention (Peter Warren).
- b. Communications Committee: No nominations
- c. **Cultural Affairs**: Lydia Gutierrez nominated, seconded by Chuck Hawley. Rachel Waugh nominated, declined. Lydia Gutierrez approved with 13 yes votes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Ortiz, Waugh, Warren and Dominguez); 1 no (Behar), 0 abstentions.
- d. **Port and Environment committee**: Peter Warren nominated by Chuck Hawley, seconded by Peter. Gary Bettis was nominated and seconded but later declined the nomination. Louis Dominguez was nominated (seconded by Peter Warren). Both nominees gave brief statements. The board voted to approve Louis Dominguez as Chair of the Port and Environment committee. Dominguez 9 votes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Shirley, Behar, Burich, Matich, Waugh, Dominguez); Warren 2 votes (Hawley, Warren); 1 abstention (Tsujimura); Ortiz and Dimon not present at voting.
- e. **Public Safety Committee**: Chuck Hawley was nominated and seconded. Chuck Hawley approved with 11 yes votes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Ortiz, Waugh, Warren and Dominguez); 0 no, 2 abstentions (Behar, Hawley). Dimon not present at voting.
- f. **Recreation and Parks**: James Baeza nominated and seconded. Approved with 11 votes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Behar, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Ortiz, Waugh); 0 no, 0 abstentions. (Warren, Hawley and Dominguez not present at voting)
- g. **Rules and Bylaws**: Dean Pencheff nominated and seconded. Approved with 13 votes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Behar, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Ortiz, Waugh, Warren and Dominguez); 0 no, 0 abstentions. (Ted Shirley not present at voting
- h. **Education**: Chris Nagle nominated by Lydia, seconded by Denise. Approved with 13 votes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Behar, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Ortiz, Waugh, Warren and Dominguez); 0 no, 0 abstentions. (Ted Shirley not present at voting)
- i. **Transportation**: John Vidovich declined a nomination. Mike Brown nominated and seconded. 13 yes, 0 no, 0 ab. Mike Brown approved with 13 votes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Behar, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Ortiz, Waugh, Warren and Dominguez); 0 no, 0 abstentions. (Ted Shirley not present at voting
- j. **Planning:** No nominations.
- k. Ad Hoc Landslide Committee: Peter Warren nominated but declined. No other nominations.
- I. Ad Hoc Pt. Fermin Seepage Committee: Adele Healy nominated and seconded. Adele Healy approved with 12 yes (Bettis, Vidovich, Marovich-Sampson, Dimon, Shirley, Burich, Tsujimura, Matich, Hawley, Ortiz, Behar, and Waugh), 0 no, 0 abstentions. Warren and Dominguez not present at voting.

#### 24. Public Comment:

- a. Comment by Gary Bettis about how disappointed he was at the performance of the board last year.
- b. Olive Reed, Harbor City Neighborhood Council President, spoke about the BONC's attempt to require training for sexual harassment and bullying. She also spoke in support of Dave Behar and his work as the 2013-2014 CSPNC President.
- 25. **Announcements:** There was a brief discussion on the logistics of the upcoming Board Retreat.
- 26. **Adjournment:** The meeting was adjourned at 10:10pm.

Respectfully submitted, Kristina Smith for Coastal San Pedro Neighborhood Council